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RE: Bat Survey Criteria 
 
Background 

The commissioners have requested a criteria for when and where a bat survey is required. 

Bats are a highly mobile species. Long-tailed bats (Chalinolobus tuberculatus; Threatened – Nationally 

Critical) colonies have large home ranges. For example, in the Eglinton Valley, a colony of long-tailed 

bats ranged over 117 km2 (11,700 ha) in the breeding season with individuals flying straight line 

distances of up to 19 km between roosting and foraging areas (O’Donnell 20011).  

Long-tailed bats  are present within the Brynderwyn Hills, 10 to 15 km north/west of the site  

(Department of Conservation bat database 2024). 

It is not known whether or not indigenous bats are present at or sometimes use the PPC84 site. 

However, due to the size of long-tailed bat home ranges and the  proximity of the site to Brynderwyn 

Hills,  any areas of large exotic trees and/or large to medium indigenous trees that are intended to be 

felled/cleared within the subdivision footprint, should be assessed using the Department of 

Conservation Protocols2 for minimising the risk of felling bat roosts, to determine if a bat survey is 

required. 

This protocol has been framed following the RMA hierarchy by focusing on the avoidance of effects, 

helping to identify and avoid the removal of roost trees, and to minimise the risk to bats of death or 

injury if avoidance is not possible.  

The protocol states that it is to be used  ‘Whenever vegetation removal is proposed in areas where 

bats are potentially present and where their habitat may be impacted’. The decision tree in this 

protocol is designed mainly to avoid felling bat roost trees, and only if unavoidable, felling roost trees 

(but only once vacated).  

 

1 O’Donnell, C.F.J. 2001b: Home range and use of space by Chalinolobus tuberculatus, a temperate rainforest bat 

from New Zealand. Journal of Zoology (London), 253: 253–264. 
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Steps 1 and 2 of the following protocol can be used to determine if the vegetation on site have 

potential bat roost characteristics. These steps provide a criteria that can be used to determine if a 

bat survey and bat management plan is required for the proposed site/s. 

The following protocol is an extract from Department Of Conservation’s Protocols for minimising the 

risk of felling bat roosts. Version 2: October 2021. It is important to note that this approach is usually 

informed by gathering data on bats in the local areas and seeking advice from a competent bat 

ecologist. 

The protocol firstly asks; 

Step 1. Does the bat roost protocol apply to my project? 

a) Is there known bat activity within a radius of 25 km of the vegetation to be removed  

Answer - Yes – evidence from most recent national DOC bat database (2024) 

b) Are bats present in the Project Area? 

Answer – Unknown- The protocol says to undertake a comprehensive survey if bats are likely 

to be present. 

c) Is the tree known to provide a roost location for bats? (Previous knowledge).  

Answer- Yes- Stands of large exotic trees in the ‘eastern block’ may offer potential roosting 

habitat, and larger anuka can also provide suitable habitat for bats to roost. In this case 

knowledge is from competent bat ecologist, Brent Henry of Wildlands. 

The protocol next asks; 

Step 2. Does the vegetation proposed to be removed have potential bat roost characteristics? 

2a) Is the tree ≥15 cm DBH (Diameter at Breast Height)? 

This assessment can be done by anyone who can measure a tree DBH, at any time. I recommend that 

this assessment is done by a non-biased person. 

It is noted in the protocol at footnote 9 that; this diameter at breast height is based on dimensions of 

roosts used by south Hamilton long-tailed bats that were identified by Dekrout (2009, Unpublished 

PhD thesis, University of Auckland) - the smallest roosts were 15.5 cm DBH; but note that in South 

Canterbury Sedgeley and O’Donnell (2004, New Zealand Journal of Ecology 28(1): 1-18) found that 

25% of long-tailed bat roosts were smaller than 18.8 cm DBH. 

If yes to question a), further assessment is required (2b).  

If no to question a), the vegetation can be removed at any time. 

However, if no to Question 2a it is noted in the protocol at footnote 10 that; there may be roosts that 

have smaller diameter at breast height (DBH). I recommend that if the tree has a smaller diameter at 
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breast height than mentioned in 2a, but does have noticeable features that indicate roost potential 

from 2b, then a suitably qualified ecologist should be advised for advice.  

2b) On visual inspection, does the tree (dead or alive) have features that indicate roost potential?  

These features include:  

• hollows  

• cavities 

 • knot holes  

• cracks  

• flaking, peeling, and decorticating bark  

• epiphytes  

• broken or dead branches or trunk  

• cavities/hollows/shelter formed by double leaders  

This assessment can be done by anyone that can identify these features. If further assessment 

required, then use an approved person at Competency Level 3.3. Visual inspections can occur at any 

time.  

If no potential roost features are present, the vegetation can be removed at any time, but if upon 

felling you find a bat follow section 5.  

If unsure to Question 2b), further assessment is required. This may include climbing the tree.  

At this stage of the protocol, if yes or unsure to Question 2b), it is recommended that a bat survey is 

undertaken by a suitably qualified ecologist to determine if bats are using the tree in question on 

site. 

If bat survey shows bat presence within the area, a bat management plan, including reference to the 

Department of Conservation Bat tree roost protocols (2021; appended below) will be require to 

mitigate any adverse effects on the bats population.  

If bats are not detected during the survey a report can be prepared for the Department of Conservation 
(DOC). The Department’s experts will then consider the report, and may conclude that bats are unlikely 
to be present, and therefore no further mitigation is required. Although, it should be noted that proving 
the absence of bats can be harder than proving they are present, because sometimes the probability 
of detecting them, even when present is quite low. Therefore, the report will need to convince DOC 
that suitable potential habitats were surveyed, under good conditions. 

It should be noted that Steps 3 to 5 in the provided protocol refer to felling roost trees (but only once 

vacated), and will not be applicable unless a bat roost tree is identified.  
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Regards, 
 

 
 
Stephen Brown (Senior Ecologist) 
 

 
 
Rachel Crawford (Avifauna and bat Ecologist) 
 

 

 
 
Des Smith (South Island Regional Manager, Senior Principal Ecologist) 

Wildland Consultants Ltd
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APPENDIX 1:  DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION BAT ROOST PROTOCOLS (2021) 
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